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PARTNERS IN LEARNING ACADEMY TRUST

TRUSTEES' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

The trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and independent auditor's report of the
charitable company for the period 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022. The annual report serves the purposes of both a
trustees' report, a directors' report and a strategic report under company law.

The academy trust operates three primary schools consisting of Baldwins Hill Primary School, Blackwell Primary School and
Halsferd Park Primary School for pupils aged 4-11 serving three catchment areas in East Grinstead. Baldwins Hill Primary
Schoel is a one form entry school and has a pupil capacity of 210 and had a roll of 190 in the school census in May 2022.
Blackwell Primary School is a two form entry schaol and has a pupil capacity of 420 and had a roll of 351 in the school
census in May 2022, Halsford Park Primary School is a two form entry school and has a pupil capacity of 420 and had a roll
of 401 in the school census in May 2022.

Structure, governance and management

Constitution

The academy trust is a company limited by guarantee and an cxempt charity. The charitable company’s memerandum and
articles of association are the primary governing documents of the academy trust. The trustees of Partners In Learning
Academy Trust Limited are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law. The charitable
company is known as Partners In Learning Academy Trust.

Details of the trustees wha served during the year and to the date that the accounts are approved are included in the
Reference and Administrative Details on page 1.

Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the event of it
being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such ameunt as may be
required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liahilities contracted before they ceased to be a member.

Trustees' indemnities

The academy trust maintains trustees’ and officers’ liability insurance which gives appropriate cover for legal action brought
against the trustees. The academy trust has also granted indemnities to each of its trustees and other officers as permitted
by law. Qualifying third party indemnity provisions (as defined by section 234 of the Companies Act 2006) were in force
during the period and remain in force, in relation to certain losses and liabilities which the trustees or other officers may incur
to third parties in the course of acting as trustzes or officers of the academy trust.

Trustees' third party indemnity is covered by a policy of insurance with Zurich, procured under a government approved
framework.
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TRUSTEES' REPORT {CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Method of recruitment and appointiment or election of trustees

The number of trustees shall not be less than 3, but shall not be subject 1o any maximum. Subject to articles 48-49 the
company shall have up to 4 trustees, appointed by the members under Article 50, a Chief Executive Officer {CEQ} and
minimum of either 2 parent trustees, unless there are Local Governing Bodies which include at least 2 parent local governors
under paint 53. The trust may also have a co-opted trustee under Article 58. The total number of trustees who are emplayed
by the trust including the Chief Executive Officer, shall not exceed one third of the total number of trustees.

The number of parent trustees and parent members of the local governing bodies or advisory bodies required shall be made
up by parent trustees and parent members appointed by the trustees if the number of parents standing for election is less
than the number of vacancies.

Itis important that Partners in Learning Academy Trust has the right people on the Trust Board. In order tc capitalise on
people’s expertise and experience the Board needs a broad, balanced and focused mix of skills in order to be a highly
effleclive Board of Truslees with Lhe abilily to challenge and supporl the Trust and the schools wilhin.

* Trustees are recruited through either a trustee recruitment programme (no longer being delivered through the
Academy Ambassadors programme, however other recruitment service providers have been identified) or by
individual skills or expertise being identified and recommended.

® Potential trustees are then invited to meet with bath the Chair of the Trust Beard and the CEO to highlight
compatibility and alignment.

* Should all parties wish to proceed, the recruitment of the potential trustee is discussed at the next Trust Board
meeting and then elected via a trustee vote and through ratification by the full board at the next available meeting.

* Initial trustee appointments are then taken to the Members Beard for approval at the nex available meeting, or by
Special Resolution.

Policies and procedures adopted for the induction and training of trustees
The new trustee undertakes an induction period with the Chair, they are provided with a new multi academy trust handbock
{published by the National Governance Association) and undertake all relevant fraining as required.

All trustees and governors are DBS checked and undertake safeguarding training and prevent training. Any new truslees
also receive the NGA's Trustee Guide as compulsory. Further training to support GDPR compliance is available via Judicium
e-learning portal. More specific training 1o support expertise caverage across the trust and the local gaverning body is via the
The Naticnal College, National Governance Association Learning Links. Additional training for governors is provided by West
Sussex County Council (WSCC}.

Organisational structure

The academy trust has a leadership structure which consists of the Academy Trust Board (ATB) and the Executive
Leadership Group (ELG). The ELG consists of the Chief Executive Officer (CEQ), who is also the Executive Principal and
accounting officer for the trust, the Head Teachers of each school within the trust, the Director of Finance & Resources and
the Director of Education. The ATB of Partners In Learning Acacdemy Trust devolves the responsibility of the day-to-day
running of the school to the ELG. Their activities and decisions are manitered through a number of governors' committees.

The commitiees are:
* Audit & Risk Commitiee
* Standards Committee
* Remuneration Committee
* Local Governing Bodies

The ATB are responsible for setting general policy, adopting an annual trust improvement plan, approving the statutory
accounts, monitoring the academy trust by the use of budgets and other standards and key performance data and making
major decisions about the direction of the academy trust, capital expenditure and senicr staff appointments. The LGB are
responsible for all areas of the curriculum and ensure that targets and achievements are in line with the school improvement
plan.
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TRUSTEES' REPORT {CONTINUED)
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Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel
Key management personnel pay is set with reference to the most up to date teachers’ pay and conditions document,
available and provided by the DfE, whilst considering the local recruitment challenges.

The CEO's pay range is set within the guidance under the section ‘Determination of the school's Headteacher group”. Other
senior leadership posts are set within the guidance under the section “determination of leadership pay ranges”.

Remuneration of key managemant personnel posts alse have due regard to the processes set out in the teachers’ pay and
conditions document under the section “Pay progression for leadership group members”. For non-teaching leadership posts
the pay is determined following the local government pay scales.

Appraisal team leaders make the annual recommendation for pay progression of their team members using the guidance set
out in the Pariners In Learning Teachers’ appraisal baoklet {Growing Great Teachers). In line with the trust's scheme of
delegalion, pay prograssion is awarded lhrough he lollowing process:

CEO/Execufive Principal pay award:
Responsible: Trust Board
Accountable: Trust Board

Director of Finance & Resources pay award:
Responsible: Trust Board
Accountable: Trust Board

Headteachers and Senior Leadership Team pay award:
Responsible: CEQ and Local Governing Body
Accountable: Trust Audit & Risk Committee

Staff pay award!

Responsible: Headteachers
Accountable: CEQ

Consulted: Local Governing Body

Trade union facility time
During the year there was no employees who were a relevant trade union official and therefore there was no trade union

facility time within this reporting period and no associated cost.
Related parlies and other connected charities and organisations

There are no related parties that either control or significantly influence the decisions and operations of the Partners In
Learning Academy Trust.

Baldwins Hill Primary school has a Parent Teacher Association (PTA) which fund raises for the benefit of the children of
Baldwins Hill Primary School. This association is a registered Charity (no 1080779}

Blackwell Primary School has a Parent Teacher Association (PTA) which fund raises far the benefit of the children of
Blackwell Primary School. This association is a registered Charity (no 1059281).

Halsford Park Primary School has a Parent Teacher Association (PTA) which fund raises for the benefit of the children of
Halsford Park Primary School. This association is a registered Charity (no 1103845).

Catchment

The trust made the decision to adopt the West Sussex County Council admissions procedures and criteria and the new
criteria wenl cut for consullation in December 2021 in preparation for a new Admissicns Policy in February 2022 which
outlined 2023 admission arrangements. No comments or queries were raised by any stakeholder during the process. West
Sussex County Council alse manage admissions for all schoals.

Partners in Learning Academy Trust applied the regulations of admissicns fairly and equitably to those who wish to attend
any of our schools. We are inclusive schools and welcome all applications. All applications will be treated on merit and in a
sensitive manner.
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Objectives and activities

Objects and aims

In accordance with the articles of association the charitable company has adopted a funding agreement and supplementary
funding agreements for the three schools, approved by the Secretary of State for Education. The principle object of the
charitable company Partners In Learning Academy Trust is the cperation of Baldwins Hill Primary School, Blackwell Primary
School and Halsford Park Primary Scheal, to provide education and care for pupils of different abilities between the ages of
4-11.

Objectives, strategies and activities:
Cur Mission, Vision Statement, Philosophy and Goals were updated during the academic year 2021/22:

Cur Mission is:
We are a learning partnership which inspires, empowers and develops scheols to prepare every child for success in life -
Today's Chifdren, Tomorrow's Future.

The Partners in Learning vision statement to 2027 is to:
* Place children at the heart of what we do
® Cultivate leading edge talent
®* Build a strong community
®* Ensure sustainability

The Partners in Learning Vision Statement into Philosephy and Goals are:

Place children at the heart of what we do

Philosophy:
®* Ensure that children in our schools work with talented and high performing teaching and support staff who plan and
deliver an “irresistible curriculum”, accessible to all.
* Through support and challenge, develop confident, resilient and reflective learners.
* Develop the whole child, so they understand what it means to be a responsible citizen.
*  Partner with parents in suppeorting children’s learning and listen to parent views.
Goals:
*  We will provide consistently excellent leadership and governance in all schools
* All schools in the Trust will consistently provide an excellent quality of education.

Cultivate leading edge talent

Philosophy:
* Encourage all of cur schools 1o be dynamic, friendly and supportive places to work.
* Recognise and reward staff talent, effort and great achievements acrass our schoals with opportunities for leadership
and advancement.
* Promote our Trust to the wider community as a great place to start — or build - a career.

* We will maintain a consistenily innovative and passionate werkforce, inspiring learning for all.
* We will embed and maintain a strong succession plan, recruiting the best talent and ensuring capacity and

rasponsiveness to future growth.

Build a strong community

Philosophy:
* Build and sustain positive and effective relationships with key stakeholders and partners to ensure there are strong
collaborations — inside and outside of the Trust
* Collaborate with wider networks to share knowledge and expertise.
Goals:
* ‘We will be a trusted centre of excellence in school improvement, school leadership, business management and
governance
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Ensure sustainability

Philosophy:
® Showcase the Partners in Learning model: recognising the distinctiveness and strengths of schoals in our Trust,
whilst ensuring close collaboration to maximise effectiveness of all.
* Share resources to maximise oppartunities for the benefit of our Trust community.
* Continually improve schocl environments to enhance learning and wellbeing
Goals:
* We will be regarded as, and ready to be, a Trust of choice (sponsorship and converter).

Trust Development Planning for 2021/2022 consisted of the main following objectives

To challenge the Executive Leadership, in the light of any national directives and developments, including those that arise
from the glabal pandemic:
* To maximise attainment and progress of pupils, ensuring consistent high performance across all schools through the
development of a broad, balanced and highly effective curriculum.
* To oversee the further development of the governance within the Trust at all levels to support objective one robustly,
® To oversee the further development of a culture of support for interdependence and the well-being of all, across the
Trust.
®* Toembed the new central Trust team, to ensure an integrated unit supporting all Trust schools, with a clear
differentiation between tha Trust's remit and the schoals.
®* To further develop the outreach activities to surrounding schools, te promote the Trust, offering both support to the
community and to further our reputation as a reliable sponsor.

The deliverables to achieve this were:
® For all levels of Leadership and Govemance to have a greater understanding of the quality of education and the
curriculum.
To capture in a visual manner, the Trust's systems and structures, time and teams.
To embed the Trust Central Team (Educational and Administration)
To raises the profile of the Trust and Schools
Ta create a clear Trust wide wellbeing definition and strategy
To support scheols in their knowledge and understanding of the current inspection framework and its implications for
them.
* Ta review the Scheme of Delegation to ensure alignment with curriculum focus.

The annual Trust Development Plan was integrated inte all Trust Board meetings allowing Trustees more regular information
on progress. The Standards Cammittee also have the Trust Development Plan as a standing agenda item to provide
additional ‘deep dives' throughout the academic year.

The Director of Education’s activities included involvement in the deliverables detailed above particularly those around the
curriculum.

ke druslieesarese pleased with the achievements made, as all deliverables were met.

Since the COVID-19 restrictions have been lifted the schocls have enjoyed the opportunity to welcome parents and carers
hack into the school in velunteering roles, including reading with the children or accompanying them on school trips. The
Trust's central team have regenerated the required background checks due 1o the extended period of aclivity volunieers
were not allowed on site in line with the DfE and safeguarding regulations.

Public benefit
In setting our objectives and planning our activities the trustees have carefully considered the Charity Commission's general
guidance on public benefit.
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Strategic report

Achievements and performance

This year has been the first year since 2019 where statutory assessmants took place. There is now school data {currenily
provisional) for the academic year and national data {validated), which are the Trust's main key performance indicators.

Schools have continued internal assessments and progress reporting which is presented as “The Headteacher Report”. This
report is scrutinised in depth, alongside supporting information, by Local Governing Bodies.

The Standards Committee receive “The Trustee Report” which has collated key information from the Headteacher Reports.
The Standards Committee works with the CEO and Director of Education {(DoE} to identify common themes across the Trust
and where trust support for individual schoals may be required. This is summarised by the Standards Commitiee at
subsequent Trust Board meetings.

Key performance indicators

Baldwins Hill - Y& 31 pupils (3.2% each)
Blackwell — Y6 60 pupils (1.7% each}
Halsford Park — Y& 60 pupils (1.7% each}

Pupils at or above expected standard
Subject 2019 2022
BH BL HP National BH BL HP National

RWM Comb |53% 54% 85% 65% 48% 56% £2% 59%
Reading 59% 63% 87% 73% 65% 73% 85% 74%
Writing 78% 64 % 85% 78% 68% 67% 67 % 69%
Maths 78% 59% 90% 79% 55% 5% 82% 71%
GPS 72% 68% 85% 78% 55% 67% T7% 72%

Commentary — school by school

The HT reports indicate in all 3 schools that the attendance of those leamners in the disadvantaged group is below that of
non-disadvantaged, An investigation has revealed that the pupil outcomes mirror this, on the whole,

Baldwins Hill

The Baldwins Hill Year 6 cohort were disproportionately impacted by the pandemic in comparison to the other schools in the
Trust. The timing of the COVID cases at Baldwins Hill for both adults and children was mid to late Spring Term, rather than
the late autumn in the other 2 schools. Capacity was stretched by iliness and, as a 1 form entry school, had greater impact
than in the two 2 form entry schools. The school met its own GDS target in reading.

Areas for development for 2022/23 - Formulate a detailed Trust Support Plan including fortnightly half day Development Day
visits by DoE. Tightening of system and structures in an endeavour to add some capacity at a leadership level. Detailed
analysis of inceming Y6 gaps in learning and needs and increased Y6 teacher support and Lead Practitioner support. Focus
on disadvantaged learners which is proportianally bigger than at the other schools.

Blackwell

Blackwell have improved on 2019 outcomes coming close to national 2022 across the board despite the pandemic. The
school exceeded its own GDS targets in RWM combined, writing and maths. No national GDS data for comparison yet. This
has resultec in a change to the schools self-evaluation categorisation to ‘good’.

Areas for development for 2022/23 — The school will continue with € DoE support days until inspection confirms good.
Appreciative enquiry - analyse what worked well to achieve this year's cutcomes and determine how to maintain and build on
this. Focus on disadvantaged learners.
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Halsford Park

The school has maintained strong cutcomes at KS2 and are at least in line with, if not better than, national averages for
2022. This was a particular achievement as one key member of staff was on long term absence from Spring 1. Writing was
moderated by the Local Autharity who agreed with the judgements made by the teachers. The school exceeded its own
target for GDS in reading and maths. No national GDS data for comparison yet.

Areas for development for 2022/23 - The school will continue with 6 DoE support days input uniil inspection. Focus on
disadvantaged learners.

All schools — KS1 simplified table

Pupils at or above expected standard
Subject 2019 2022
BH BL HP National BH BL HP Naticnal
Phonics Y1 80% 85% 82% 82% 72% 85% 66% 75%
Reading 73% 60% 75% 75% T0% 53% 58% 67%
Writing 70% 58% 47 % 59% 40% 47% 50% 58%
Maths 73% 70% 70% 76% 56% 55% 62% 68%

Trust-wide Commentary

Across all schools in the trust, there was a greater impact on results in the younger year groups than that seenin Year 6. A
new phonics scheme was intraduced 1o strengthen early reading across all 3 schaols at various points during the year. This
has had a positive impact at Baldwins Hill and Blackwell.

It is warth noting that Fischer Family Trust, an education data, literacy and research charity have said the following about Key
Stage 1 results this year:

‘Pupils in Year 2 this year have had the whcle of Key Stage 1 disrupted by COVID. Given that context, it is unsurprising that
their attainment was lower compared fo previous cchorts, al feast in the 600 schools thal have shared dala with FFT.
Perhaps in retrospect the differences aren’t as large as might have been feared.

This cohort will be assessed at the end of Key Stage 2 in 2026. Assuming that the patterns in Key Stage 71 resuits hold in the
national data when it is published, the government's target that 90% of pupils will achicve the expected standard in reading,
writing and maths by 2030 now seems even further way.” FFT

a. Improving educational outcomes

All three schools have continued to collaborate and offer mutual support, where that is beneficial, around curriculum
development and subject leader/championship and Ofsted preparation. School websites, for example, demonstrate how
much effort has gone into this at all levels. LA Adviser visit reports note improvement at all 3 schools in both curriculum
planning and offer and growing expertise of subject championship.

All three schools are now in the Ofsted window and are ready, proud and prepared te show and explain their vision,
provision, quality of teaching and learner outcomes.

Whilst the strength that is gained from the close network ng is taken advantage of there is a growing understanding that each
school benefits also from a tight focus on its own priorities meeting the needs of its own community. Whilst collaboration and
an amount of alignment can support this in many instances it is also essential to keep ‘thinking for themselves’. All 3 schools
have restructured leadership with this in mind. Each school identifies members of teaching staff who are shawing patential to
attend the Growing Great Leaders programme during the year.

The schools continue te have thelr specific development priorities. A common theme for academic year 2022/2023 is
supporting disadvantaged children whera the gap in achievement has risen in comparisen to their non-disadvaniaged peers,
as is the case nationally. The schools are monitoring the attendance and outcomes of this groeup in comparison to others. As




PARTNERS IN LEARNING ACADEMY TRUST

TRUSTEES' REPORT {CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

The intention for 2022/23 is for Head Teachers to be able to start promptly with Spotlights on Learning for all, INSET focused
on pedagogy. Precision in planning and delivery of teaching and learning will be an additional trust wide focus for the coming
academic year.

All schocls will be reviewing their Behaviour policies and the Trust has made an application for all schools to be part of the
Behaviour Hub Programme.

Across the schools there will be 3 Early Careers Teachars who will meet once a term 1o share their experiences and receive
some Trust based inpul alongside their ECT programme. Members of staff in 2 schools will take part in the ECT induction
Tutor and Mentor training.

Going cancern

After making appropriate enquiries, the Board of Trustees has a reascnable expectation that the Academy Trust has
adequate resources to continue in oparational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason they continue to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details regarding the adoption of the going concern basis
can be found in the accounting policies.

Financial Review

The principle source of funding for the academy trust is the general annual grant (GAG) and other government funding, the
use of which is restricted to particular purpeses. This has been utilised in a manner which serves the best interests of the
school and its pupils. The objective of the academy trustis to advance, for the public benefit, education in the United
Kingdom in particular to establish, maintain, carry on, manage and develop a school offering a broad balanced curriculum.

The grants received during the year ended 31 August 2022 and the associated expenditure are shown as restricted funds in
the statement of financial activities {SOFA).

During the year ended 31 August 2022 the main expenditure item has been salary costs. During this period the total
expenditure {excluding pension reserves) of £5,336,375 was covered by recurrent government funding from the ESFA
together with other incoming resources and accumulated reserves brought forward. As reported in the SOFA, income
excluding fixed assets totals £4,901,182.

Twe CIF appeals for Halsford Park and Blackwell schools were unsuccessful at this time.

Section 106 Funding has been allocated to Baldwins Hill Primary school which is currently in the planning stage and a
nominated consultant has been allocated by West Sussex County Council. This has now been deferred until 2022/23

Self-funding income generation has been from various sources through the reporting period including increased lettings
across the trust and wrap around care offered to all three schools and operated on two sites.

The in-year surplus figure of £33,899 agrees to the change in balance of restricled general funds (excluding pension reserve}
plus unrestricted funds. The brought forward reserves plus the surplus within the current year gives us tolal reserves of
restricted general funds {excluding pension reserves) plus unrestricted funds of £205,592.

In line with one of the Ofsted identified areas for development, to improve attendance for disadvantaged and SEND pupils,
common across all schools in the Trust, funding has continued to be used with a service level agreement with an education
welfare service, to provide schools with specialist support and guidance regarding attendance/absenteeism to improve
attendance.

The academy trusts reserve and investment policies have been detailed below.

-10 -
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Reserves policy
The trustees review the reserve levels of the academy trust annually. The review includes the income and expenditure

streams, the need to match income with commitments and the nature of any reserves. By setting and managing a balanced
budget, they aim to only carry forward reserves that it considers necessary and will have a clear plan for how it will be of
henefit to the pupils.

The trustees have determined that a target of one month’s operational costs costs of around £428,000 {(of which arcund £
300,000 is salary costs) should be maintained when possible to ensure adequate working capital cover for delays between
spending and the receipt of grant monies plus a further amount to act as a cushion for unexpected emergencies such as
urgent building maintenance.

The academy trust has £193,472 in unrestricted reserves. This fund is freely available for its general purposes, training and
rasources, some of this has been used this year to support the emergency maintenance on both sites, general resources
and new service leval agreemenls. As al 31 Augusl 2022, lhere was £12,120 in reslricled general funds {excluding pension
reserve) available to carry forward, giving total available reserves £205,592.

The available reserves as at 31 August 2022 are below the target level of resources noted above. However, the gap has
closed on last year's reserves and is on track to continue to close to meet the target in future years. The Trust Board are
aware of the financial situation and that the gap is closing. Thay are aware however, that there are global issues that may
affect the speed in which the gap can be closad and are aware of the severe slaffing issues that have impacted the
educational sector. The Trust are also aware of the economic situation and the rising cost of resources due to the pandemic.

The Director of Finance & Resources, along with the Audit & Risk Committee have worked hard to make savings going
forward which have included the following activities:
* Employment of Early Careers Teachers in two of the schools, which has also provided development opportunities for
staff to provide mentoring and support.
Full review of our SEND provision to make best use of funding 1o maximise the support for our children.
Strong marketing campaign cantinues from previous years.
Continued opportunities for school to schoel support.
Increased support activities to another Trust and external support providers.
Extending the use of lettings and facilities at all three schools.
Review of all SLA to ensure best value.
Exploring other funding streams, including CIF bids.
Strong PTA support.
® Continuing to use Cover Supervisors and HLTA's across all schools to reduce supply costs.

Invesiment policy
There are no material investments held by the academy trust, other than cash at bank. Cash balances are invested in such a

way that the cash is readily accessible whilst a small return has been generated by way of interest earned. The trustees are
satisfied with the interest earned on the cash balances in the year.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The principal risk to the Partners In Learning Academy Trust is the maintenance of pupil numbers as funding is directly
related to the number of pupils on roll. The number on rall is set in the October of the previous year and is the basis of the
calculation on which the funding is received in the following September. There remains a strong possibility of volatility
regarding the future funding of academies and the ever increasing costs set against reducing budget income. This risk has
been identified in the trust risk register.

Throughout the year, the trust board meet regularly to review the risk register which is updated by the Director of Finance &
Resources and clerk on a monthly basis, or sconer, should a new risk emerge. Due to the global pandemic during this
accounting period, all financial, oprrational, compliance and strategic risks have been reviewed and duly nated, with the
Audit & Risk Committee taking responsibility for deep dives and internal scrutiny from September 2021 with internal scrutiny
being carried out on IT provision, as identified on the risk register.

11 -
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Fundraising
We do not fundraise at the Trust level, but we bid for additional grants from the ESFA, the DfE and any other eligible grants
where possible.

All fundraising activities are carried out by the individual schools Parent Teacher Associations (PTA's) which conforms to the
recognised standards under the provisions of the Charities (Protection and Social Investment Act)} 2016, Section 13. Each
school's PTA is a registered charity.

Under section 2.3 of the charity fundraising guidance, the day-to-day management of financial activities has been delegated
to the Trust Business Manager. All funds are monitered in line with the guidelines and recognised standards as highlighted in
the Academies Accounts Direction 2021/22.

PTA activities are approved and closely monitored by the Headteachers. This includes all risk assessments and systems in
order 1o prolecl the schools, Lhe trust and heir repulalions, and lhose allending such evenls. Such events are adverlised
through the school holding the event and there is no undue pressure placed on any person to donate to the school. For
example, on a non-uniform day, a £1 donation is suggested but is not compulsery in order to take part.

The PTA continue to apply for grants with external agencies and have been highly successful in securing additional funding
which has contributed to the huge improvements to the outside areas at two of cur schools.

To date we have not received any fundraising complaints.

The Fundraising Policy represents a commitment to the highest standards of good practice and ensure that all fundraising
activities are open, legal and fair. The trust will actively ensure the protection of the public, including vulnerable people, from
unreasonably intrusive or persistent fundraising approaches, and undue pressure to donate.

Plans for future periods
The Trust's Mission, Vision and 5 Year Goals are detailed within the objectives section above.

The main objectives, geals and deliverables far the 2022/23 year are:
* To support scheols to effectively deliver their curriculum, through precision teaching, to enhance the quality of
education.
* Ta grow by merging with another Trust.

The Board of Trustees made the decision earlier this year to explore a voluntary merger with Every Child Trust (ECT). The
Board agreed that is would be beneficial to explore the merger as an option to ensure a successful future for the Trust and its
schools.

Bath the CEO and Partners in Learning Academy Trust's Board of Trustees believe the voluntary merger would bring
excellent benefits to both Trusts and help to ensure a successful future. They strongly believe that there is a great common
ground between the two trusts in terms of values and ethos and their ambition for the children, staff and community. Both
Trusts have a clear commitment 1o providing an outstanding education in the heart of their local community. This would be a
merger where both Trusts are equally successful at what they do and collectively bring improved opportunities for children
and communities.

Both Trusts already have a long-standing collaboration with the CEO of Partners in Learning Academy Trust having provided
assistance to the Every Child Trust for three years and currently being appointed as the Deputy CEQ of Every Child Trust.
As part of the merger, the schools will leave the Partners in Learning Academy Trust and join the Every Child Trust which will
then be rebranded.

The proposal is for the merger of Partners in Leaming Academy Trust and Every Child Trust Academy Trust to be fully
FOmEE R A e RS SN rBIED IS BRARR Sf others
The Partners In Learning Academy Trust does not hold funds on behalf of others.
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PARTNERS IN LEARNING ACADEMY TRUST

TRUSTEES' REPORT {CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Auditor
In 50 far as the trustees are aware:
4 there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditor is unaware; and
. the trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant audit

information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

The trustees' report, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by erder of the hoard of trustees, as the company
directors, on 2 December 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

Mr J A Faulkes
Chair of Trustees
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PARTNERS IN LEARNING ACADEMY TRUST

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Scope of responsibility

As trustees, we acknowledge we have overall respansibility for ensuring that Partners In Learning Academy Trust has an
effective and appropriate system of control, financial and ctherwise. However, such a system is designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatemant or loss.

As trustees, we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in DfE's Governance Handbook and competency
framework for governance.

The beard of trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the CEO as accounting officer, for ensuring financial
controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and in accordance with the
requirements and respensibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between Partners In Learning Academy Trust and
the Secretary of State for Education. They are also responsible for reporting to the board of trustees any material
weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

Governance

The information ¢n governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees’ Report and in the Stalement of
Trustees' Responsibilities. The board of trustees has formally met 8 times during the vear. Attendance during the year at
meetings of the board of trustees was as follows:

Trustees Meetings attended Out of possible

Mr J A Faulkes (Chair of Trustees)

Mr G Livingstone (Director, CEQ and Accounting Officer)
Mrs M T Osivwemu (Resigned 31 August 2022)

Mr P Brooks

Mr N C Heslop {Vice Chair of Trustees)

Mrs R Thorne

Mr B Woollard

Mrs J Fairbourn

[=> R o> I« I s - B« - R s ]
[o-e e B -l e Bl e - B o) B s B e o]

The Board structure shown above demonstrates a Board of long standing trustees this academic year. One Trustee took a 2
month sabbatical and did not wish to be re-appointed at the end of their term in office (31 August 2022). As in previous
perinds the Trust Board it has focused on defining future strateqgy for the Trust as well as managing risk, aversight of
finances, perfermance management and educalional performance.

The Trust Board has performed at an effective level this year. In particular, it has fully deployed its sub committees, that were
established in prior years, sc that detailed oversight and leadership have been provided to help focus main Board time on top
level strategic issues . The Audit and Risk Committee has worked closely with our Director of Finance & Resources to enable
the Board to keep on top of a challenging financial position and strategies to manage in coming years. The Standards
Committee has worked with the Director of Education to develop standardised and optimum routine reports for the Board;
learning walks looking at improvement processes have been carried out at the schools with middle leaders. The Board as a
whole works well as a strategic leadership unit. Relationships between the Trustees and the Executive staff remain
excellent. Clerking for the Board is professional and thorough. Late in the reperting period, the Board werked through the
key decision to propose to the DFfE the possible merger with Every Child Trust and developed a fully informed agreement.
During this reporting pericd, Board members were surveyed so that the Chair and the CEQ could plan the best mix of
Trustee skills and link roles in the future. In particular, confirmed in place was cur experienced and strong vice Chair. A full
self evaluation has been completed by the Standards committee and agreed by the Board. Beyond this, an external Board
evaluation has been commissioned. This was scheduled for Autumn 2022, but has been posiponed until 2023 as we intend
to do this post-merger.
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PARTNERS IN LEARNING ACADEMY TRUST

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Conflicts of interest

The Trust Board maintain a register of pecuniary interesis. This is sent out at the start of each academic year. Trustees are
also asked to update their pecuniary interest statements at the end of every Trust Board meeting via GovernorHub, so that
the Clerk can ensure that up-to-date information is available. With regard to Trust Beard meetings, Trustees are asked at the
start of each meeting if they have any pecuniary interests in any agenda item. Should a Trustee have a pecuniary interest in
an item, appropriate steps are taken by the Chair to address this, for example, the Trustee may leave the meeting at the
point of the agenda item discussion.

Governance reviews

The Trust Board carry out a self-assessment on an annual basis. This self-assessment is based on the Confederation of
School Trusts' template and is conducted at the first full Trust Board meeting of the academic year and is then reviewed at
the end of the academic year by the Standards Committee. The findings from the Standards Committee at the end of the
academic year are then fed through to the Trust Board te form the basis for discussion and in order to prepare areas far
development for the new academic year.

The Trust Board have commissioned an external review through the DfE's South-East England and South Lendon Regional
Delivery Directorate programme, utilising the NGA service. This was due to take place in the Autumn Term, however, this
has been deferred to the Summer Term {2023).

Remuneration committee

This meeting was carried out virtually by the Audit & Risk Committee praviding scrutiny to the pay progression proposal
circulated by the CEO in November and email agreements were received. Agreement was reached in both the Remuneration
Committee and the December ATB.

Avstft e RivNEEShampgeenses from Trustees approving the recommendations.

The Audit & Risk Committee (A&RC) met 6 times during the academic year pricr to a full Trust Board. The purpcse of the
committee is to oversee and scrutinise finance, premises, HR and review the Risk Register. The Committee report their
findings and present as a summary at a full Trust Board meeting. This level of scrutiny is judged effective and sufficient by
the Board.

Attendance was as follows:

Trustee Meetings Attended  Qut of a possible
Mr N C Heslop 3] &)

Mr B Woollard <] 8

Mrs M T Osivwemu 1 6

Standards Committee

The Standards Commitiee met 3 times during the academic year at each ‘data drop'. The purpose of the committee is to
oversee and scrutinise standards across the schools within the Trust. The Committee repart their findings and present as a
summary at the next full Trust Board meeting. This level of scrutiny is judged effective and sufficient by the Board.

The Board self-evaluation, using the DfE MAT Improvement Capacity Framework and CST Framework, has been
established as an annual process and the next review will be September 2021.

Attendance was as follows:

Trustee Meetings Attended  Qut of a possible
Mrs R Thorne 3 3

Mr P Brooks 3 3

Mrs J Fairbourn (Appeinted 8 December 2020) 2 3

Mr G Livingstone 3 3
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PARTNERS IN LEARNING ACADEMY TRUST

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Review of value for money

As accounting officer, the CEQ has responsibility for ensuring that the academy trust delivers good valug in the use of public
resources. The accounting officer understands that value for money refers to the educational and wider societal cutcomes
achieved in return for the taxpayer rescurces received.

The accounting officer considers how the trust's use of its resources has provided good value for money during each
academic year, and reports to the board of trustees where value for money can be improved, including the use of
henchmarking data or by using a framewark where appropriate. The accounting officer for the academy trust has delivered
improved value for money during the year by:

* External Funding
The CIF bid Early Years building project was completed on time and ready for the academic year. The retention
maniss were paid after 6 months. There is no update on the 3106 as no contractor tendered for the works in 2021/22
and the project has been moved tc 2022/23 with an anticipated start date of April 2023.

® Support beyond the Trust
Continued provisicn of school to schaal support in areas of Maths for Sussex Maths Hub, Leadership support to
another Trust and an additional support partner in Surrey.

* Support within the Trust
A restfructure of the Trust Central Team has taken place and has provided more services managed centrally. Further
centralising of services will continue in the coming academic year

IT improvements have continued threughout the year, including new Wi-Fi and server.

Early budget setting with a strong level of proactive involvement with Headteachers, along with the continued Trust
Board involvement through the Audit & Risk Committee has raised financial awareness across the schools and the
Trust.

* Savings & Income Generation

In a continuing drive to reduce costs carried out from last year, Cover Supervisors and HLTA's continue to be used and

as part of the succession planning programme further staff have been trained. The Trust's current recharge rate is stil

below the recommended national benchmark for primary schools.
The purpose of the system of internal control
The system of internal control is designed to manage risk ta a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of failure to
achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can, therefore, only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness.
The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the
achievement of academy trust policies, aims and cbjectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the
impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and econemically. The system of internal control
has been in place in Partners In Learning Academy Trust for the period 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 and up to the
date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.

Capacity to handle risk

The beard cof trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the academy trust is exposed together with the cperating, financial
and compliance controls that have been implementad to mitigate those risks. The hoard of trustees is of the view that there is
a formal on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing the academy trust's significant risks that has been in
place for the period 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial
statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the board of trustees.
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PARTNERS IN LEARNING ACADEMY TRUST

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

The risk and control framework
The academy trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management information and
administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountabhility. In particular it
includes:

* comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports which are

reviewed and agreed by the board of trustees

* regular reviews by the Audit & Risk committee cf reports which indicate financial performance against the forecasts
and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes
selting targets to measure financial and other performance
clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment} guidelines
delegation of authority and segregation of duties
Identification and management of risks.

The beard of trustees has considered the need for an internal scrutiny and assessed the non-financial risk lies within the
Trust IT systems which was carried out by an external IT provider, focusing on hardware, software, malware and security.
Blackwell Primary School received a full in-depth IT security analysis. All recommendations were actioned.

The trust continue to use Edufin to provide further financial internal scrutiny focusing on financial processes and controls
together with accounting procedures. They also continue support throughout the year in the maintenance of the Trust finance
systems. An additional financial review has also been undertaken throughout this period.

Training and upskilling continued in the reporting period with the Bursar and Business Manager focusing on advanced
processes and procedures, and an internal audit took place in June 2022. Internal audit visits are scheduled for the
forthcoming year 2022/23.

Review of effectiveness
As accounting officer, the Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal
control. During the period in question the review has been informed by:
®* The work of the external IT provider
®* The wark of the internal auditor
* The work of the external auditor
* The financial management and governance self-assessment process or the school rescurce management
self-assessmant taol
* The work of the Senior Leadership Team within the academy trust who has responsibility for the development and
maintenance of the internal control framework.

The accounting officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal control by
the Academy Trust Board and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place.

Approved by order of the board of trustees on 2 December 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

Mr J A Faulkes Mr G Livingstone
Chair of Trustees Chief Executive Officer and Accounting Officer
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PARTNERS IN LEARNING ACADEMY TRUST

STATEMENT CF REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

As accounting officer of Partners In Leaming Academy Trust | have cansidered my responsibility to notify the academy trust
hoard of trustees and the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA} of material irregularity, impropristy and non-compliance
with terms and conditions of all funding received by the Academy Trust, under the funding agreement in place between the
academy trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my consideration | have had due regard te the
requirements of the Academies Trust Handbook 2021.

| confirm that | and the academy trust board of trustees are able to identify any material irreqular or improper use of funds by
the academy trust, or material nen-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the academy trust's funding

agreement and the Academies Trust Handbook 2021,

| confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered to date. If any
instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the board of trustees and ESFA.

Mr G Livingstone
Accounting Officer

02 December 2022
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PARTNERS IN LEARNING ACADEMY TRUST

STATEMENT CF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

The trustees (who are also the directors of Partners In Learning Academy Trust for the purposes of company law) are
responsible for preparing the trustees’ report and the acccunts in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction
published by the Education & Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the trustees to prepare accounts for each financial year. Under company law, the trustees must not
approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of rescurces, including its income and expenditure, for that
period.

In preparing these financial statements, the trustees are required to:

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

obscrve the methods and principles in the Charitics SORP 2019 and the Academics Accounts Dircction 2021 to 2022;
make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed
and explained in the financial statements; and

® prepare the financial stalements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the charitable
company will continue in business.

The trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient 10 show and explain the charitable
company's Iransactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the charitable company
and enable them to ensure that the accounts comply with the Companies Act 2006, They are also responsible for
safequarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of
fraud and other irregularities.

The trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies financial and other
contrals, which conform with the requirements bath of propriety and of good financial management. They are also responsible
for ensuring that grants received friom ESFA/DIE have been applied for the purposes intended.

The trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the
charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of accounts

may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the board of trustees on 02 December 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

Mr J A Faulkes
Chair of Trustees
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PARTNERS IN LEARNING ACADEMY TRUST

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF PARTNERS IN LEARNING
ACADEMY TRUST

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Opinion

We have audited the accounts of Partners In Learning Academy Trust for the year ended 31 August 2022 which comprise the
statement of financial activities including income and expenditure account, the balance sheet, the statement of cash flows
and the notes to the accounts, including a summary of significant acceunting policies. The financial reporting framework that
has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdem Accounting Standards, including Financial
Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’ (United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Ditection 2021 to 2022
issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

In our apinion the accounts:
- give a true and fair view of the state of the charitable company's affairs as at 31 August 2022 and of its incoming
resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year then ended:;

- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;
- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and

- have been prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to
2022.

Basis for opinicn

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Qur
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 'Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the accounts'
section of our report. We are independent of the academy trust in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the accounts in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of matter

We draw your attention to note 1.2 and the 'Plans for future periods' section of the Trustees' report on page 13. These
describe the Trust's possible voluntary merger with Every Child Trust. Were this to proceed, the merger would be achieved by
the Trust transferring all of its assets, liabilities and operations to Every Child Trust for £nil consideration. The Trust would
then cease 1o trade, with its current schools operated by the new combined entity. Our opinion is not modified in respect of
this matter.

Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the trustees' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or cenditions that,
individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the academy trust's ability to continue as a going concemn for a
period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue,

Qur responsibilities and the responsibilities of the trustees with respect to going concern are described in the relevant
sections of this report.
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PARTNERS IN LEARNING ACADEMY TRUST

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF PARTNERS IN LEARNING
ACADEMY TRUST (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Other information

The trustees are responsible for the other information, which comprises the information included in the annual report other
than the accounts and our auditar's report thereon. Qur opinicn on the accounts does not caver the other infermation and,
except to the extent otherwise explicilly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In cannection with our audit of the accounts, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing sa, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the accounts or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are
required to determine whether there is a material misstalement in the accounts or a material misstatement of the other
information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
infermation, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinians on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the waork undertaken in the course of the audit:

- the information given in the trustees' report including the incorporated strategic report for the financial year for which
the accounts are prepared is consistent with the accounts; and

- the trustees' repert including the incorporated strategic report has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the academy trust and its environment obtained in the course of the audit,
we have not identified material misstatements in the trustees’ report, including the incorporated strategic report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us 1o

report ta you if, in our opinion;

- adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us; or

- the accounts are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

- certain disclosures of trustees’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of trustees

As explained mare fully in the statement of trustees' responsibilities, the trustees are responsible for the preparation of the
accounts and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the trustees determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of accounts that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the accounts, the trustees are responsible for assessing the academy trust’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the trustees either intend to liquidate the charitable company, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the accounts

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the accounts as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and 1o issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1ISAs (UK) will always detecta
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatemenis can arise from fraud or errcr and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these accounts.
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PARTNERS IN LEARNING ACADEMY TRUST

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF PARTNERS IN LEARNING
ACADEMY TRUST (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with
our responsibilities, oullined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to
which our procedures are capable of delecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below.

In identifying and assessing risks of material misstatement in respect of irregularities, including fraud and non-compliance
with laws and regulations, our pracedures included the following:

* QObtaining an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework that the charitable company operatas in, focusing
on those laws and regulations that had a direct effect on the financial statements and operations;

* Obtaining an understanding of the charitable company's policies and procedures on fraud risks, including knowledge
of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud;

®* Discussing among the engagement team how and where fraud might occur in the financial statements and any
potential indicators of fraud through our knowledge and understanding of the charitable company and our
sector-specific experience.

As a result of these procedures, we considered the cpportunities and incentives that may sxist within the charitable company
for fraud. We are also required to perform specific procedures to respond to the risk of management override. As a resull of
performing the above, we identified the following areas as those most likely to have an impact on the financial statements:
employment law and compliance with the UK Companies Act, Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022 and the 2021
Academies Trust Handbook.

In additicn to the above, cur procedures to respond to risks identified included the following:

* Making enquiries of management and those charged with governance about any known or suspected instances of

non-compliance with laws and regulation, fraud or any actual or potential litigation and claims against the charitable

company;

Reviewing minutes of meetings of the board of trustees, senior management and the audit committee;

Reviewing internal scrutiny reports for the academic year;

Reviewing financial statement disclosures to assess compliance with applicable laws and regulations;

Reading correspondence with regulators;

Review and assess compliance with the Academies Trust Handbook 2021 and issue a separate report on compliance

with regularity requirements;

® Challenging assumptions and judgements made by management in their significant accounting estimates, in particular
in relation to the local government pension scheme; and

* Auditing the risk of management override of controls, including through testing journal entries and other adjustments
for appropriateness.

Due to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoaidable risk that seme material misstatements in the financial
statements may not be detected, even thaugh the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with the ISAs (UK).

stan e, the further removed n (;om lia ce |s e events and }ransa tions reflected, |r? &19 fnanm% statefpents,
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a

&
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PARTNERS IN LEARNING ACADEMY TRUST

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF PARTNERS IN LEARNING
ACADEMY TRUST (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the charitable company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken s¢ that we might state to the charitable company's members
those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. Te the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the charitable company and the charitable company's
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Robin Evans BA FCA CTA (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of Carpenter Box 14 December 2022
Chartered Accountants

Statutory Auditor

Worthing

Carpenter Box is a trading name of Carpenter Box
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PARTNERS IN LEARNING ACADEMY TRUST

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO
PARTNERS IN LEARNING ACADEMY TRUST AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS FUNDING
AGENCY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 8 November 2018 and further ta the requirements of the
Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022, we have
carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure dishursed and income received by
Partners In Learning Academy Trust during the period 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 have been applied to the
purpeses identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to Partners In Learning Academy Trust and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our engagement
letter. Qur work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Partners In Learning Academy Trust and ESFA those
matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept
or assume responsibility to anyone other than Partners In Learning Academy Trust and ESFA, for our work, for this report, or
for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Partners In Learning Academy Trust's accounting officer and the reporting accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of Partners In Learning Academy Trust's funding agreement
with the Secretary of State for Education dated 18 August 2014 and the Academies Trust Handbook, extant from 1
September 2021, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes intended by
Parliament and the financial fransactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by cur profession’s ethical guidance, and are
to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with cur engagement letter and the requirements of the Academies
Accounts Direction 2021 1o 2022. We report ta you whether anything has come ta our attention in carrying out our work which
suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 September 2021 to 31
August 2022 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to
the authoritizs which govern them.

Appreach
We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and Reporting Accountant
of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and explanations in
order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and consequently does
not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in a
reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinian.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the academy
frust's income and expendilure.
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INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO
PARTNERS IN LEARNING ACADEMY TRUST AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS FUNDING
AGENCY (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

The work undertaken to draw to aur conclusion includes:
* Consideration of the evidence supporting the accounting officer's statements on regularity, propriety, and compliance;

* Review of procedures and controls ensuring their adequacy, compliance and appropriateness;
® Analytical procedures on the general activities of the academy trust;
*  Planning of assurance procedures including idenlifying key risk areas;

® Further testing and review of the areas identified through the risk assessment including the testing and identification of
control processes and examination of supporting evidence as well as additional verification and substantive testing on
individual transactions.

®* A review of minutes of committees and board meetings which may ke relevant te regularity;

® Consideration of discussions with key personnel including the accounting officer and governing body.

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the expenditure
disbursed and income received during the period 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 has not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliament and the financial transactions dc not confoerm to the authorities which govern them.

Reporting Accountant
Carpenter Box

Amelia House
Crescent Road
Worthing

West Sussex

BN11 1RL

Dated: 14 December 2022
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PARTNERS IN LEARNING ACADEMY TRUST

STATEMENT CF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total Total
funds General Fixed asset 2022 2021
Notes £ £ £ £ £
Income and endowments from:
Denatiens and capital grants 3 75,927 - 22,598 98,525 483,997
Denatiens - transfer from local
authority on conversion - - - - 4,477,077
Charitable activities:
- Funding for educational
aperations 4 153,708 4 527 249 - 4,680,957 4,395,116
Other trading activities 5 42,772 101,478 - 144,250 53,256
Investments 1 48 - - 48 52
Total 272,455 4,628,727 22,598 4,923,780 9,409,498
Expenditure on:
Raising funds 7 1,764 44 - 1,808 1,806
Charitable activities:
- Educational operations 9 62,084 5,069,594 186,082 5,317,760 5,025818
Capital acquisitions expensed - - 16,807 16,807 -
Total 7 63,848 5,069,638 202,889 5,336,375 5,027,624
Net income/{expenditure) 208,607 (440911) (180,291) (412,595) 4,381,874
Transfers between tunds 18 (105,258) 15,962 89,697 - -
Other recognised gains/{losses)
Actuarial gains/{losses) an
defined benefit pension schemes
20 - 1,832,000 - 1,832,000 (312,000}
Net movement in funds 103,348 1,406,651 (90,524) 1,419,405 4,069,874
Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought forward 90,124 (1,394,231} 12,018,153 10,714,746 6,644,872
Total funds carried forward 193,472 12,120 11,928,559 12,134,151 10,714,746
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PARTNERS IN LEARNING ACADEMY TRUST

STATEMENT CF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Comparative year information
Year ended 31 August 2021

Income and endowments from:

Donations and capital grants

Denaticns - transfer from local authority on conversion
Denations - transfer of existing academy into the trust
Charitable activities:

- Funding for educational operations

Other trading activities
Investments

Total

Expenditure on:
Raising funds
Charitable activities:

- Educational operations

Total

Net incomef{expenditure)
Transfers between funds

Other recognised gains/{losses)
Acluarial losses on defined benefit pension schemes

Net movement in funds

Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought forward

Total funds carried forward

Notes

]

18

20

Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total
funds General Fixed asset 2021
£ £ £ £
76,468 - 407,529 483,997
17,782 {216,000) 4,630,156 4,431,938
} 45,139 - 45,139
117,289 4277847 - 4395116
38,283 14,973 - 53,256
52 - - 52
249,854 4,121,959 5,037,685 9,409,498
1,808 - - 1,806
18,919 4,828,853 178,046 5,025,818
20,725 4,828,853 178,046 5,027,624
229,129 (706,894) 4,859,639 4,381,874
(283,980) 260,117 23,843 -
- {312,000} - (312,000)
(54,831)  (758,777) 4883482 4,069,874
144,955 (635,754) 7,135,671 6,644,872
90,124 {1,394,531) 12,019,153 10,714,746
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PARTNERS IN LEARNING ACADEMY TRUST

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2022

Notes
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 13

Current assets
Debtors 14
Cash at bank and in hand

Current liabilities
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

13
Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than
ane year 16

Net assets before defined benefit pension scheme
liability

Defined benefit pension scheme liability 20
Total net assets

Funds of the academy trust:

Restricted funds 18
- Fixed asset funds

- Restricted income funds

- Pension reserve

Total restricted funds

Unrestricted income funds 18

Total funds

2022
11,914,997

127,302
402,577

529,879

{305,894)
223,985

12,138,982
(4,831}

12,134,151

12,134,151

11,928,559
12,120

11,940,679
193,472

12,134,151

2021
12,012,362
310,085

275,469

585,554

(399,923)
185,631

12,197,993
(7.247)

12,190,746
{1,476,000)

10,714,746

12,019,153
81,469

{1,476,000)

10,624,622
90,124

10,714,746

The accounts were approved by the board of trustees and authorised for issue on 02 December 2022 and are signed on its

hehalf by:

Mr J A Faulkes
Chair of Trustees

Company Number 09081030
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PARTNERS IN LEARNING ACADEMY TRUST

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash provided by/{used in) operating activities

Cash funds transferred on conversion

Cash flows from investing activities

Dividends, interest and rents from investments
Capital grants from DIE Group

Capital funding received from sponscrs and others
Purchase of tangible fixed assels

Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities

Loan inherited on conversion
Repayment of loan inherited on conversion

Notes

21

Net cash {(used in)/provided by financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

in the reporting period

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

2022
£ £
195,596
195,596
48
22,598
(88,718}
(66,072)
(2,416)
(2.418)
127,108
275,459

402,577

2021
£ £
(83,119)
67,859
(15,250)
52
22,671
379,858
(430,004}
(27 423)
12,078
(2,415)
9,663
(33,020)
308,489

275,469
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PARTNERS IN LEARNING ACADEMY TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

11

1.2

1.3

Accounting policies

A summary of the principal accounting policies adepted {which have been applied consistently, except where noted),
judgements and key sources of estimation of uncertainty, is set cut below.

Basis of preparation

The accounts of the academy trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been prepared under the
historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of
Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recormmended Practice applicable to
charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and
Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022 issued by
ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006.

The financial statements are prepared in sterling, which is the functional currency of the entity. Monetary amounts in
these financial statements are rounded to the nearest £1.

The charity is a company limited by guarantee and has no share capital.

Going concern

The trusiees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any material uncertainties
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the charitable company te continue as a
going concem. The trustees make this assessment in respect of a period of at least ane year from the date of
authaorisation for issue of the financial statements.

As described in the 'Plans for the future periods’ section of the Trustees' report on page 13, the Trust is considering a
possible voluntary merger with Every Child Trust Academy Trust. Were this to proceed, the merger would be achieved
by Partners In Learning Academy Trust transferring all of its assets, liabilities and operations to the Every Child Trust
which will then be rebranded, for a £nil censideration. Pariners In Learning Academy Trust would then cease to trade,
with its current schocls operated by the combined entity. The Regional Birecter has given the initial go ahead for due
diligence procedures to be undertaken, however the final decision and agreement has not yet been signed and the
Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence if the merger does not proceed.

Based on the above, the trustees have concluded that the trust has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeabls future and there are no material uncertainties about the trust's ability to continue as a
going concern. Thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial
statements.

Income
All incoming resources are recognised when the academy trust has entitement to the funds, the receipt is probable
and the amount can be measured reliably.

Grants

Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of income received for
specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the balance sheet. Where
income is received in advance of meeting any performance-related conditions there is not unconditional entitlement to
the income and its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related
conditions are met. Where entitlement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recngnised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the period for which it is
receivable, and any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from income and recognised as a liability.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

14

Accounting policies (Continued)

Capital grants
Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entittement to the grant. Unspent amounts of

capital grants are reflected in the balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital grants are recognised when
there is entitliement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they are expended.

Capital grants are received for capital purposes and must be spent in line with the terms and conditions of the grant.

Donalicns
Daonations are recoegnised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions) where the receipt
is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

Qther income
Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is receivable and to the extent the academy
trust has provided the goods or services.

Donaled goods, facilities and services

Goods donated for resale are included at fair value, being the expected proceeds from sale less the expected costs of
sale. If it is practical to assess the fair value at receipt, it is recognised in stock. Upon sale the proceeds are recognised
as 'Income from other trading activities'. Where it is impractical to fair value to items due to the volume of low value
items, they are not recognised in the financial statements until they are sold. This income is recognised within 'Income
from other trading activities’

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to a third party, it
is probable that a transfer of ecanomic benefits will be required in settlement, and the amount of the chligaticn can be
measured reliably.

Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared
costs, including support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity are
allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and support costs which are
not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis consistent with the use of
resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation charges are allocated on the
portion of the asset’s use.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.

Expenditure on raising funds
This includes all expenditure incurred by the academy trust o raise funds for its charitable purposes and includes
costs of all fundraising activities events and nen-charitable trading.

Charilable acliviles
These are costs incurred on the academy trust's educational operations, including support costs and costs relating to
the governance of the academy trust apportioned to charitable activities.

Govermnance costs
These include the costs attributable to the academy trust's compliance with constitutional and statutory requirements,
including audit, strategic management, trustees’ meetings and reimbursed expenses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

1 Accounting policies (Continued)

1.5 Tangible fixed assets
Assets costing £2,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of depreciation and
any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government or from the
private sector, they are included in the balance sheet at cost and depreciated over their expectad useful economic life.
Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding that require the continued use of the asset, the related
grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the statement of financial activities and carried forward in the
balance sheet. Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to the restrictad fixed asset fund in the
statement of financial activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricled funds, depreciation
on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Depreciation is provided cn all tangible fixed assets, at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset on a
straight-line basis over its expected useful life, as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings Over 125 years
Coumputer equipment 3 years
Fixturas, fittings & equipment 10 years

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost. Depraciation on these assets is not charged until they are
brought into use and reclassified to freehold or leasehold land and huildings.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value of any fixed asset may nat be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed assets and their
recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Financial
Activities.

1.6 Liabilities
Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a pasi event, it is
prabable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in setflement, and the amount of the settlement can be
estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the academy trust anticipates it will pay to settle the
debt ar the amnunt it has received as advanced payments for the goods of services it must provide.

1.7 Leased assets
Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight line basis over the pericd of the lease.

1.8 Financial instruments
The academy trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and financial
liahilities of the academy trust and their measuremrent basis are as follows.

Financial assets
Trade and cther debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments measured at amortised cost as

detailed in note 14. Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

1.9

Accounting policies (Continued)

Financial liabilities
Trade c¢reditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are measured at amortised cost as detailed
in note 15. Taxation and social security are not included in the financial instruments disclosure definition.

Deferred income is not deemed 1o be a financial liakility, as the cash setflement has already taken place and there is
an ohligation to deliver services rather than cash or another financial instrument.

Taxation

The academy trust is cansidered ta pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule § of the Finance Act 2010 and
therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes. Accordingly, the academy
trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received within categories covered by part
11 chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1982, to the
extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable purposes.

Pensions benefits

Retiremant benefits to employees of the academy trust are previded by the Teachers' Pension Scheme ('TPS') and the
Local Government Pension Scheme {'LGPS'). These are defined benefit schemas and the assels are held separately
from those of the academy frust.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions over
employees’ working lives with the academy trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level percentage
of current and future pensicnable payrell. The centributions are determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of
quadrennial valuations using a projected unit method. The TRS is an unfunded multi-employer scheme with no
underlying assets to assign betwean employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined contribution scheme
for accounting purposes and the eontributions are recognised in the peried to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded multi-:employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the academy trustin
separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities are measured
on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of
relurn on a high quality corporate bond of eguivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are
obtained at least triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date. The amounts charged to net
income/(expenditure)} are the current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes,
settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined
benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities and comprises the interest cost on the
defined benefil obligation and inlerest income on lhe scheme assets, calculaled by multliplying the lair value of lhe
scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the benefit obligaticns. The difference
between the interest income on the scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other
recognised gains and losses.

If the present value of the defined benefit abligation at the reperting date is less than the fair value of plan assets at
that date, the plan has a surplus. A plan surplus, as a defined bensfit plan asset, is only recognised 1o the extent that it
can be recovered either through reduced contributions in the future or through refunds from the plan.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.

Fund accounting
Unrestricted inceme funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the charitable
objects of the academy trust at the discretion of the trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by funders
where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

1 Accounting policies (Continued)

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the funder/donor and
include grants from the Education and Skills Funding Agency/Department for Education.

2 Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

Accounting estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and octher
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Academy Trust makes estimates and assumptions conceming the future. The resulting accounting estimates and
assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment ta the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number of factors
that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net
costs or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note
19, will impact the carrying amaount of the pension liability. Furthermore a roll faorward appreach which projects results
from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2019 has been used by the actuary in valuing the
pensions liability at 31 August 2022. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a
full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability.

3 Donations and capital grants

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

funds funds 2022 2021

£ £ £ £

Donated fixed assets - - - 5,000
Capital grants - 22,598 22,598 402,529
Other donations 75,927 - 75,927 76,468

75,927 22,598 98,526 483,097

The income from donations and capital grants was £88,525 (2021: £483,897) of which £75,927 (2021: £76,468) was
unrestricted, £nil (2021: £5,000) was restricted fixed assets and £22,538 (2021: £402,529) was restricted funds.
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4

Funding for the academy trust’s educational operations

DfE/ESFA grants

General annual grant (GAG)
Other DIE/ESFA grants:
UIFSM

Pupil premium

Other DfE group grants

Other government grants
Local authority grants
Special educational projects

COVID-19 additional funding
{DIE/ESFA)

Catch-up premium

Other DIE/ESFA COVID-12 funding

Othar incoming resources

Total funding

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

funds funds 2022 2021

£ £ £ £

- 4,020,499 4,020,499 3,594,724

- 122,892 122,892 113,541

- 133,042 133,042 127,266

- 133,809 133,809 243,286

- 4,410,242 4,410,242 4,078,817

- 59,707 59,707 84,349

- 32,263 32,263 20,688

- 91,970 91,870 105,037

- 25,037 25,037 80,160

- - - 13,833

- 25,037 25,037 93,993

153,708 - 153,708 117,269
153,708

4,527,249

4,680,957 4,395,116

The income from funding for educational operations was £4,680,956 (2021: £4,395.116) of which £153,709 (2021:
£117,269) was unrestricted and £4,527,249 {2021: £4,227,847) was restricted.

Other trading activities

Hire of facilities
Parental contributions

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds 2022 2021

£ £ £ £

42,772 - 42,772 38,283

- 101,478 101,478 14,973

42772 101,478 144,250 53,256

The income from other trading activities was £144 250 (2021: £53,256) of which £42,772 (2021: £38,283) was
unrestricted and £101,478 (2021: £14,973} was restricted.
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8 Central services

5 Investment income
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds 2022 2021
£ £ £ £
Short term deposits 48 - 48 52
All income from investments in the current and prior year was unrestricted.
7 Expenditure
Non-pay expenditure Total Total
Staff costs Premises Other 2022 2021
£ £ £ £ £
Expenditure on raising funds
- Direct costs - - 1,808 1,808 1,806
Academy's educational operations
- Direct costs 3,383,183 - 279,265 3,662,448 3,471,783
- Allocated support costs 894,261 401,725 359,297 1,655,313 1,554,035
Capital acquisitions expensed - - 16,807 16,807 -
4,277 474 401,725 657,177 5,336,376 5,027,624
The expenditure on raising funds was £1,808 (2021: £1,808), all relating to unrestricted funds.
Net income/(expenditure) for the year includes: 2022 2021
£ £
Fees payable to auditer for:
- Audit 7,140 7,400
- Other services 5,935 6,150
- Teachers' pension audit 1,985 1,850
Operating lease rentals 6,693 5,734
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 186,083 178,046
Net interest on defined benefit pension liability 27,000 18,000

The academy trust has provided the following central services to its academies during the year:

financial services

educational support services
legal and professicnal services
insurance

The academy trust charges for these services on approximate pupil numbers.
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8 Central services

(Continued)

The amounts charged during the year were as follows: 2022 2021
£ £
Baldwins Hill Primary Schoal 52,423 44 779
Partners In Learning Academy Trust - -
Halsford Park Primary School 130,410 90,141
Blackwell Primary School 93,097 65,813
275,930 200,733
9 Charitable activities
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds 2022 2021
£ £ £ £
Direct costs

Educational operaticns 48,817 3,615,831 3,662,448 3,471,783

Support costs
Educational operaticns 15,267 1,640,046 1,655,313 1,554,035
62,084 5,255,677 5,317,761 5,025,818

The expenditure on educational operations was £5,317,761 (2021: £5,025,818) of which £62,084 {2021: £18,919) was
unrestricted, £5,069,594 (2021: £4,828,856) was restricted and £186,083 {2021: £178,048) was restricted fixed assets.

Analysis of support costs
Suppeort staff costs
Depreciation

Premises costs

Legal costs

Other supporl costs
Governance costs

2022 2021

£ £

894,291 791,081
186,083 178,046
215,642 207,353
21,438 54,404
313,951 294,792
23,908 28,379
1,655,313 1,554,035
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10

Staff
Staff costs
Staff costs during the year were:
2022 2021
£ £
Wages and salaries 2,613,694 2,851,173
Social security costs 246,424 240,377
Pension costs 970,940 889,410
Staff costs 4,031,258 3,980,960
Agency staff costs 246,216 148,286
Total staff expenditure 4,277,474 4,129,246
Staff numbers
The average number of persons employed by the academy trust during the year was as follows:
2022 2021
Number Number
Teachers 47 47
Administration and support 79 87
Managemeant 10 10
136 144
Higher paid staff
The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded £60,000 was:
2022 2021
Number Number
£90,001 - £100,000 1 1
£70,001 - £80,000 1 1
£60,001 - £70,000 1 1

The above employees participated in the Teachers' Pension Scheme.

Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the academy trust comprise the trustees and the senior management feam as
listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension contributions) received by key

management personnel for their services to the academy trust was £721,248 (2021: £738,982).

-38-




PARTNERS IN LEARNING ACADEMY TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

1"

12

13

Trustees' remuneration and expenses

The Chief Executive Officer {CEO) has been paid remuneratien or received other benefits from empleyment with the
academy trust. They have only received remuneration in respect of services they provide undertaking the roles of the
CEO under their contracts of employment, and not in respect of their services as trustees. Other trustees did not
receive any payments from the academy trust in respect of their role as trustees.

The value of trustees' remuneration was as follows:

G Livingstone (Chief Executive Officer and trustee})
Remuneration:  £95,0600 - £100,000 (2021: £95,000 - £100,000)
Employer's pension contributicns: £20,000 - £25,000 (2021: £20,000 - £25,000)

During the year, fravel and subsistence payments totalling £nil were reimbursed to staff trustees (2021: £nil). These
expensas were incurred wholly in their capacity as employees of the trust.

Trustees’ and officers’ insurance

In accordance with normal commercial practice, the academy has purchased insurance to protect trustees and officers
from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on academy business. The insurance
provides cover up to £10,000,000 on any one claim and the cost for the period was included with the total insurance
costs. It is not possible to quantify the trustees and officers indemnity element from the overall cost of the insurance

scheme.

Tangible fixed assets

Leasehold Assets under  Computer Fixtures, Total
land and construction  equipment fittings &
buildings equipment
£ £ £
Cost
At 1 September 2021 12,103,009 354,135 228,413 45483 12,731,040
Reclassified on completion 354,135 {354,135) - - -
Additions 8,795 - 4,705 75,218 88,718
Reclassification between asset categories
386.421) - - 386,421 -
At 31 August 2022 12,079,518 - 233,118 507,122 12,819,758
Depreciation
At 1 September 2021 544,498 - 148,428 25752 718,678
Reclassification belween asset categories
{133,512) - - 133,512 -
Charge for the year 96,636 - 44,289 45,158 186,083
At 31 August 2022 507,622 - 192,717 204,422 904,761
Net book value
At 31 August 2022 11,571,896 - 40,401 302,700 11,914,997
At 31 August 2021 11,558,511 354,135 79,985 19,731 12,012,362
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14

15

16

Debtors

2022 2021
£ £
Trade debtors 9.070 5,103
VAT recoverable 25,598 63,057
Prepayments and accrued income 92,634 241,925
127,302 310,085

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
2022 2021
£ £
Other loans 2,416 2,416
Trade creditors 97,072 56,048
Other taxation and social security 60,024 58,384
Other creditors 342 101
Accruals and deferred income 146,040 282,974

305,894 399,923

Included within other loans above is the current remaining portion of £2,418 of a local authority school solar loan
granted to Blackwell Primary School in October 2015 from West Sussex County Council, which was initially granted for
£24,376. The loan was inherited from the local authority on conversion. There are instalments of £2,418 due annually
on 01 February every year. Interest is charged on the loan of 4% per annum. The remaining balance of £4,831 is
shown within creditors falling due after more than one year.

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

2022 2021
£ £

Cther loans 4,831 7.247
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16  Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

Analysis of loans

Wholly repayable within five years
Less: included in current liabilities

Amounts included above
Loan maturity
Debt due in one year or less

Due in more than one year but not more than two years
Due in more than two years but not more than five vears

17  Deferred income

Deferred income is included within:
Creditors due within one year

Deferred income at 1 September 2021
Released from previous years
Resources deferred in the year

Deferred income at 31 August 2022

2022
7.247
(2,418)

4,831

2.416
2,416
2,415

7.247

2022
£

124,890

135,991
(129,641)

118,540

124,890

(Continued)

2021
£

9,663
(2,416)

7,247

2,416
2416
4,831

9,663
2021

135,991

91,946
(83,390)
127,435

135,991

At the balance sheet date the Academy Trust was holding funds received in advance of £72,922 for Universal Infant
Free School Meals Funding, £12,063 of Rates reimbursement, £20,41% of SEN funding, £10,000 of PTA donations,
£5,250 Children Centre staffing recharges, £2,754 National tutoring grant and £1,482 in relation fo trip income 1o be

refunded which relate to the 2022/23 academic year.
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18

Funds

Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG)
Start up grants

UIFSM

Pupil premium

Catch-up premium

Other DfE/ESFA grants
Other government grants
Other restricted funds
Pension reserve

Restricted fixed asset funds
Inherited @n conversion

DfE group capital grants

Capital expenditure from GAG
Private sector capital sponsorship

Total restricted funds

Unrestricted funds
General funds

Total funds

Balance at Gains, Balance at
1 September losses and 31 August
2021 Income  Expenditure transfers 2022

£ £ £ £ £

- 4,020,499 {4,023,941) 15,562 12,120

27,908 - (27,208) - -

- 122,892 {122,892) - -

- 133,042 (133,042) - -

32,374 25,037 (57.411) - -
21,187 133,809 (154,996) - -

- 91,970 (91,270) - -

- 101,478 (101,478) - -
{1,476,000) - (356,000) 1,832,000 -
{1,394,531) 4,628,727 (5,069,638) 1,847,562 12,120
10,753,679 - (91,251) - 10,662,428
1,261,446 22,598 (102,606) 84,693 1,266,131
- - (5.004) 5,004 -

4,028 - (4,028) - -
12,019,153 22,598 (202,889) 89,697 11,928,559
10,624,622 4,651,325 (5,272,527} 1,937,259 11,940,679
90,124 272,455 (63,848) (105,259) 193,472
10,714,746 4,923,780 (5,336,375) 1,832,000 12,134,151
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18

Funds (Continued)

Within the year, the academy have transferred £105,259 from unrestricted funds to caver the deficit on GAG and
restricted fixed asset capital expenditure from GAG during the year.

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

- GAG funds are restricted to providing education and funding the academy’s operating costs.

- Start-up funding was provided to cover the costs associated with expanding the trust.

- UIFSM funding provides funding to offer free school meals to pupils in reception, year 1 and year 2.

- Pupil premium funding is provided 1o improve education outcomes for disadvantaged pupils.

- Cateh-up premium is provided to help pupils and disadvantaged young people catch up on missed  education

due to COVID-19.

- Other DIE/ESFA grants relate to reimbursement for specific services and funding the academy's  operating costs

- Other government grants are in relation te funding the academy's operating costs as well as towards  the costs of

providing special education needs.

- Qther restricted funds are held to provide trips and other activities to students and for the provision of  education.

- Capital grants are received for capital purchases and must be spantin lina with the terms and  conditions of the
grant.

The academy trust is not subject GAG carried forward limits.
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18  Funds

Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:

(Continued)

Balance at Gains, Balance at
1 September losses and 31 August
2020 Ihcome  Expenditure transfers 2021
£ £ £ £ £
Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG) - 3,606,275 (3,877,732) 271,457 -
Starl up grants 63,246 - (35,338) - 27,908
UIFSM - 113,541 (113,541) - -
Pupil premium - 127,266 (127,266) - -
Catch-up premium - 80,160 (47,786) - 32,374
Other DfE/ESFA grants - 283,028 (260,501) (11,340) 21,187
Other government grants - 112,716 (112,7186) - -
Other restricted funds - 14 973 {14,973) - -
Pension reserve (629,000) {216,000) (249,000) (312,000) {1,476,000)
(635,754) 4,121,959 (4,828,853) {51,883) {1,394,531)
Restricted fixed asset funds
Transfer on conversian 5,216,319 4,630,156 (92,796) - 10,753,679
DfE group capital grants 906,504 402,529 (81,139) 33,552 1,261,448
Capital expenditure from GAG 12,848 - (3,139) (9,709) -
Private sector capital sponsorship
- 5,000 (972) - 4,028
7,135,671 5,037,685 {178,046) 23,843 12,019,153
Total restricted funds 6,499,917 9,159,644 (5,006,899} (28,040) 10,624,622
Unrestricted funds
General funds 144,955 249,854 {20,725) (283,960) 90,124
Total funds 6,644,872 9,409,498 (5,027,624) (312,000) 10,714,746

Within the prior year, the academy have transferred £283,960 from unrestricted funds and £11.340 from other
DfE/ESFA grants ta cover the deficit an GAG and restricted fixed asset capital expenditure from GAG during the year.
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18

19

Funds

Total funds analysis by academy

(Continued)

2022 2021
Fund balances at 31 August 2022 were allocated as follows: £ £
Baldwins Hill Primary Schocl 27,260 33,850
Partners In Leaming Academy Trust 49,392 47,022
Halsford Park Primary School 63,367 33,828
Blackwell Primary School 65,573 57,093
Total before fixed assels fund and pension reserve 205,592 171,583
Restricted fixed asset fund 11,928,559 12,019,153
Peansion reserve - (1,476,000)
Total funds 12,134,151 10,714,746
Total cost analysis by academy
Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:
Teaching and Other costs
educational Other support Educational excluding Total Total
support staff staff costs supplies depreciation 2022 2021
£ £ £ £ £ £
Baldwins Hill Primary School
709,255 156,616 20,141 154,568 1,040,580 954,337

Partners In Learning
Academy Trust 132,967 140,885 102,407 56,901 433,180 322173
Halsford Park Primary School

1,331,795 365,530 28,650 281,479 2,007,464 1,912,068
Blackwell Primary School 1,142,674 258,260 20,838 247271 1,669,083 1,660,999

3,316,691 921,291 172,096 740,219 5,150,297 4,849,577
Analysis of net assets between funds

Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total
Funds General Fixed asset Funds
£ £ £ £

Fund balances at 31 August 2022 are
represented by:
Tangible fixed assets - - 11,914,997 11,914,997
Current assets 193,472 322,845 13,562 529,879
Creditors falling due within one year - (305,894) - (305,894)
Creditors falling due after one year - (4,831) - (4,831)
Total net assets 193,472 12,120

11,928,559

12,134,151
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19  Analysis of net assets between funds (Continued)
Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total

Funds General Fixed asset Funds

£ £ £ £

Fund balances at 31 August 2021 are
represented by:

Tangible fixed asscts - - 12,012,362 12,012,362
Current assets 90,124 488,639 6,791 585,554
Creditors falling due within one year - (399,923) - {399,923)
Creditors falling due after one year - (7,247) - (7.247)
Defined benefit pension asset - (1,476,000) - (1,476,000)
Total net assets 90,124 {1,394,531) 12,019,153 10,714,746

20 Pension and similar obligations

The academy trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme England
and Wales {TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pensicn Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching
staff, which is managed by West Sussex County Council. Both are multi-employer defined benefit schemes.

The pension costs are assessad in accordance with the advice of independent qualified actuaries. The latest actuarial
valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016, and that of the LGPS related to the period ended 31
March 2019,

Contributions amounting to £Nil (2021: £Nil) were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2022 and are included within
creditors.

Teachers' Pension Scheme

Introduction

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the Teachers'
Pension Schems Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for teachers in academies. All teachers have the option
to opt out of the TPS follewing enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a percentage of
salary. These contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by public
funds provided by Parliament.

Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in
accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by HM
Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial scheme
valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and many other factors.
The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2016. The valuation report was published by
the Department for Education on 5 March 2019.
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20  Pension and similar obligations (Continued)

The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation are:

®* employer contribution rates set at 23.88% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% employer administraticn
charge)

® total scheme liahilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future henefits) for service to
the effective date of £218,100 million, and nctional assets {estimated future contributions together with the
national investments held at the valuation date) of £196,100 million giving a notional past service daficit of
£22,000 million

* the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used 1o determine the notional investment return. The current SCAPE rate is
2.4% above the rate of CPI. The assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of prices and 2% in excess of
earmnings. The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The assumed nominal rate of return
including earnings growth is 4.45%.

The next valuation result is due to be implementad from 1 April 2024.
The employer's pension costs paid to the TPS in the period amounted to £443,364 {2021: £451,580).
A copy of Lhe valualion report and supponting documenlation is on the Teachers’ Pensions websile,

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-emplayer pension scheme. The academy trust
has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The academy trust has
set out above the information available on the scheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-administered funds.
The total contributions made for the year ended 31 August 2022 was £253,898 (2021: £261,410), of which employer's
contributions totalled £199,846 (2021: £208,001) and employees' contributions totalled £54,051 (2021: 53.409).The
agreed contribution rates for future years are 22.5% for employers and 5.5 to 12.5% for employees.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the event of
academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the Department for
Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.

Total contributions made 2022 2021

£ £
Employer's contributicns 194,000 211,000
Employees' contributions 54.000 54,000
Total contributions 248,000 265,000
Principal actuarial assumptions 2022 2021

% %
Rate of increase in salaries 3.6 3.4
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation 31 29
Discount rate for scheme liahilities 4.3 1.7
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20  Pension and similar obligations (Continued)

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates. The
assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

2022 2021
Years Years
Retiring today
- Males 21.9 221
- Fermales 242 24.4
Retiring in 20 years
- Males 22.8 231
- Females 259 26.1
Scheme liabilities would have been affected by changes in assumptions as follows:
2022 2021
£'000 £'000
Discount rate + 0.1% 77.0) (131}
Discount rate - 0.1% 77.0 131
Mortality assumption + 1 year 120.0 200
Mortality assumption - 1 year (120.0) (200)
CPlrate + 0.1% 76.0 126
CPlrate - 0.1% {76.0) (1286)
Defined benefit pension scheme net asset/{liahility) 2022 2021
£ £
Scheme assels 3,703,000 3,523,000
Scheme obligations (3,703,000) (4,999,000)
Net asset/(liability) - (1,476,000)
The academy trust's share of the assets in the scheme 2022 2021
Fair value Fair value
£ £
Equities 1,814,470 1,831,960
Bends 1,184,960 1,268,280
Cash 111,090 140,920
Property 592,480 281,840
Total market value of assets 3,703,000 3,523,000

The actual return on scheme assets was £(60,000) (2021: £530,000}.
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20  Pension and similar obligations

Amount recognised in the statement of financial activities

Current service cost
Interest income
Interest cost

Total operating charge

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations

At 1 September 2021

Obligations acquired on conversion
Current service cost

Interest cost

Employee contributions

Actuarial (gain)/loss

Benefits paid

At 31 August 2022

Changes in the fair value of the academy trust's share of scheme assets

At 1 September 2021

Assets acquired on conversion
Interest income

Actuarial loss/(gain})

Employer contributions
Employee contributions
Benefits paid

At 31 August 2022

(Continued)

As at 31 August 2022 the Trust's West Sussex Pension Fund was in surplus for each school by:

Baldwins Hill Primary Schocl
Halsford Park Primary School
Blackwell Primary School

2022 2021
£ £
523,000 442,000
(60,000 (48,000)
87,000 66,000
550,000 460,000
2022 2021
£ £
4,999,000 2,526,000
- 1,121,000
523,000 442,000
87,000 66,000
54,000 54,000
(1,852,000} 794,000
(8,000} (4,000)
3,703,000 4,999,000
2022 2021
£ £
3,523,000 1,827,000
- 905,000
80,000 48,000
(120,000} 482,000
194,000 211,000
54,000 54,000
{8,000) (4,000)
3,703,000 3,523,000
155,000
344,000
187,000
686,000

The criteria for the recognition of the surplus as an asset as described in acceunting policy 1.10 was not met. The
scheme's liability have therefore been restricted by £686,000 so as to not recognise the surplus.
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21 Reconciliation of net (expenditure)/income to net cash flow from operating activities

Net (expenditure)fincome for the reporting period {as per the statement cf financial
activities)

Adjusted for:

Net surplus on conversion to academy

Capital grants from DfE and other capital income
Investment income receivable

Defined benefit pension costs less contributiens payable
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets
Decrease/(increase) in debtors

{Decrzase)/increase in creditors

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities

22 Analysis of changes in net funds

1 September

2022 2021
£ £
(412,595) 4,381,874
- (4,431,938)
(22,598) (407.529)
(48) {52)
329,000 231,000
27,000 18,000
186,083 178,048
182,783 (178.353)
(94,029) 170,972
195,596 (37.980)

Cash flows 31 August 2022

2021
£ £ £
Cash 275,469 127,108 402,577
Loans falling due within one year (2,416) - (2,416)
Loans falling due after more than one year (7,247) 2,416 (4.831)
265,806 129,524 395,330

23 Long-term commitments, including operating leases

At 31 August 2022 the total of the academy trust's future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating

leases was:

Amounts due within one year
Amounts due in two and five years

2022 2021
£ £
7.210 6,693
11,461 4,149
18,671 10,842

-8B -




PARTNERS IN LEARNING ACADEMY TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

24

25

26

Related party transactions

Owing to the nature of the academy trust and the composition of the board of trustees being drawn from local public
and private seclor organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the trust has an interest. All
transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with the requirements of the AFH, including
notifying the ESFA of all transactions made an or after 1 April 2019 and obtaining their approval where required, and
the the academy trust's financial regulations and normal procurement procedures relating to connected and related
party transactions. No related party transactions tank place in the period of account, other than certain trustees’
remuneration and expenses already disclosed in note 11,

Post balance sheet events

After the year end, it was agreed in principle with the regional schools commissioner that the three schools will leave
Partners In Learning Academy Trust and will join another existing academy trust. The current date of the merger is
unknown and still under review.

Members' liability
Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of it being

waund up while he or she is a member. or within one year after he or she ceases to be a member, such amount as
may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before he or she ceases to be a member.
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